
URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
MARCH 23, 2015 

 
0:00 DATE  COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, CITY OF WOODBURN, COUNTY 

OF MARION, STATE OF OREGON, MARCH 23, 2015 
 

CONVENED   The meeting convened at 6:47 p.m. with Chair Figley presiding. 
 

 ROLL CALL 
Chair Figley Present 
Member Schaub Present 
Member Lonergan Present  
Member Carney Present 
Member Morris Present 
Member Ellsworth Present 
Member Alonso Leon Present 

 
Staff Present: City Administrator Derickson, City Attorney Shields, Captain Alexander, 
Public Works Director Scott, Assistant City Administrator Row, Human Resources Director 
Hereford, Economic and Development Director Hendryx,  Urban Renewal Manager 
Stowers, City Recorder Pierson 

 
0:00 CONSENT AGENDA 

A.  Urban Renewal Agency minutes of March 9, 2015. 
Morris/Ellsworth… adopt the Consent Agenda.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 
0:00 ASSOCIATION BUILDING FEASIBILITY REVIEW COMMITTEE 

RECOMMENDATION 
 Economic and Development Director Hendryx provided a staff report. Lonergan/Alonso 

Leon… reject all Association Building proposals consistent with the direction of the 
Association Building Feasibility Review Committee. The motion passed unanimously.   
 

0:27 ADJOURNMENT 

Morris/Lonergan… meeting be adjourned.  The motion passed unanimously.   
The meeting adjourned at 7:14 p.m. 
 

 
 
APPROVED                                                            
                      KATHRYN FIGLEY, CHAIR 

 
 
ATTEST                                                                         
               Heather Pierson, City Recorder 
               City of Woodburn, Oregon 

 
Page 1 – URA Board Minutes, March 23, 2015 

1



Agenda Item 
 

 
  April 13, 2015 
 
 
TO: Downtown Advisory Renewal Subcommittee 
 
FROM: Jim Hendryx, Economic and Development Services Director 
 Robyn Stowers, Urban Renewal Manager 
 
SUBJECT: URG 2015-06 225 W Hayes Street (Chay Properties, LLC)  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Woodburn Urban Renewal Agency Board approve 
the Urban Renewal Exterior Grant application from Chay Properties, LLC 
(Applicant) for up to $5,700. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Woodburn Urban Renewal Agency Board (Agency) approved a 
comprehensive grant and loan program on February 14, 2011 for properties 
within downtown Woodburn.  The program is designed to provide matching 
funds for exterior ($10,000) and interior ($5,000) improvements to commercial 
properties located in the historic downtown district. The program also provides 
loan funds ($25,000) to further these same improvements.   
 
The Applicant owns two other downtown properties located at 405 and 425-445 
N. First Street.  Over the past two years, the Applicant was awarded $50,000 of 
Urban Renewal grant funds to repair the properties and received a $20,000 
grant from the state to restore the historic façade. The Applicant purchased   
225 W. Hayes Street on November, 2014 at auction, due to its proximity directly 
behind the N. First Street properties and its structural integrity. The property is in 
need of a new roof and the Applicant is requesting $5,700 for the project.  
 
The Downtown Advisory Review Subcommittee (DARS) first reviewed the 
application on February 24, 2015 and recommended that the Agency approve 
the $5,700 request. On March 9th, the Agency rejected the application, 
expressing concern over the improvements and value of the building, and 
requesting that DARS reevaluate their recommendation in light of the following 
questions: (1) whether the value of the property is sufficient to warrant the 
improvement, (2) whether the structure is capable of supporting a new roof, 
and (3) whether the ultimate use of the property will positively impact to the 
area. 

 

2



Urban Renewal Grant and Loan Application Review 
URG 2015-06 225 W Hayes Street (Chay Properties, LLC) 
 
 
To address Agency concerns on value, structural integrity, and use, the 
Applicant submitted a development plan and attended the March 26th DARS 
meeting. 
 

(1) The Applicant acknowledged that replacing the roof at a cost of $11,400 
is a large investment in a property that Marion County values at $25,310 
(RMV Total); however, replacing the roof is more economically feasible 
than demolishing the property and constructing a new building. The 
current Grant and Loan Program does not set project cost to property 
value ratios. 
 

(2) The plans (see attachment) show that the building is constructed of 8” 
steel reinforced concrete walls.  It also illustrates the building floor plan, 
roof framing details and elevations. A building permit is required for a 
commercial roof and approval must be obtained from the City’s building 
inspector to ensure the structural integrity of the property. 

 
(3) Previously, the property was used as a medical office and the Applicant 

plans to maintain the current occupancy classification and lease the 
facility for office space. The current Grant and Loan Program does not 
require applicants to identify building use. 

 
DARS determined that the application complies with current program 
requirements and would add significant value to the downtown by transforming 
a blighted property into an active commercial space. DARS recommended the 
Agency approve the request for $5,700. 
 
Proposal 
The proposal is to replace the roof. 
 
Grant amount:     $5,687.50 
Estimated cost of all improvements:  $11,375 
Percentage of grant to total project costs: 50% 
 
Program Criteria: 
 
Property Location & Ownership 
The property is located at 225 W. Hayes.  
 

• That the property is within the Urban Renewal Grant and Loan District. 
The property is within the Urban Renewal Grant and Loan District. 

 

3



Urban Renewal Grant and Loan Application Review 
URG 2015-06 225 W Hayes Street (Chay Properties, LLC) 
 
 

• That the proposal complies with the downtown architectural design 
standards and signage standards. 

The exterior grant is intended to repair the existing roof, which is not 
visible to the public.  This request does not impact the appearance 
of the building or the signage. 

 
• That the project encourages greater marketability of the downtown 

area. 
Restoring a vacant, blighted property improves the overall 
marketability of the downtown. 

 
• That the proposal will complement the existing historic downtown core. 

Improving the appearance of a blighted property complements the 
existing historic downtown core. 
  

• That the project design works toward restoring the building as closely to 
its original design as possible.  

Replacing the roof works towards restoring the property to its 
original design. 

 
• That building interiors are improved  with a focus on addressing code-

related improvements   
Not applicable 

 
• That the project is in the public interest 

The Urban Renewal Program specifically identifies the need to 
improve buildings within Woodburn’s downtown.  Continued 
improvements will be made to the subject property.   

 
Summary and Conclusion  
The Downtown Grant and Loan Program is intended to encourage and assist 
business and property owners to invest in the downtown.  This particular grant 
application is intended to assist the business owners to make improvements to 
their property by repairing the roof.  The request is consistent with the program 
criteria. 
 
Conditions of Approval 
1. There is a 50/50 match requirement required for the Grant program.  Invoices 

must be submitted for reimbursement.  No grant money will be disbursed until 
the project is completed and is approved by the Agency. 

2. Grant and loan funds cannot be used for any work commenced or 
completed prior to project approval. 

4



Urban Renewal Grant and Loan Application Review 
URG 2015-06 225 W Hayes Street (Chay Properties, LLC) 
 
 
3. Grant and loan funds may be used for materials and services provided by 

licensed contractors. 
4. All necessary building, electrical, plumbing permits must be obtained and 

work inspected and approved. 
5. Projects shall be completed within one year of approval in order to be 

eligible for reimbursement.  Grants provide for a single payment after receipts 
are provided and all completed work is accepted by the City. 

6. All work will be done by licensed contractors and the applicant needs to 
provide at least three bids for every aspect of work greater than $2,500. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Application 
2. Development Plan for 255 W. Hayes St. 
3. 255 W. Hayes St. Property Records 

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



URG 2015-06 255 W Hayes (Chay) 

 
Exterior 

 
Exterior 

12



	   	  

Original	  Built:	  1985	  
Floor	  Type:	  Solid	  Concrete	  
Wall	  Type:	  8”+	  Steel	  re-‐enforced	  CMU	  wall.	  
Former	  Use:	  Family	  medical	  Doctor’s	  office.	  
Proposed	  Use:	  

• Professional	  Office	  
• Medial/Dental	  Office	  
• Health	  Care	  Service	  
• Community	  Service	  

13



	  
	  
	  
	  

	  
	  
	  

W.	  Hayes	  Street	  View	  

14



	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	   	  

Hayes	  Building	  Rear	  Entrance	  View	  

15



	  
Hayes	  Building	  Preliminary	  Roof	  Framing	  and	  Interior	  View	  

16



2/18/2015 Marion County Assessor's Property Records  Property Summary

http://apps.co.marion.or.us/PropertyRecords/PropertySummary.aspx?pid=R105926 1/1

Marion County Assessor's Property Records
Property Summary
Property Identification
Property ID: R105926 Manufactured Home ID:
Situs Address: 255 W HAYES ST

WOODBURN, OR 97071
Legal Description: ADDITION A WOODBURN, FR LOTS 5 &

6, BLK 1. ANNEX. 8436.
Map Tax Lot: 051W18BA01400

Owner Information
Owner: MARION COUNTY

C/O FINANCE
<CHAY LLC
1980 WILLAMETTE FALLS DR #120343
WEST LINN, OR 97068

   

Property Details
Year Built: 1985 Property Code: O11 
Living Area: 902  Property Class: C30 
Bedrooms: 0 Levy Code Area: 10303930
Bathrooms: Zoning: Contact Local Jurisdiction
Legal Acreage: 0.052 Apex Sketches: 1
   

Value Information
RMV Land: $18,140 Exemption Description: COUNTY GOV'T OWNED PROPERTY,

FULL EXEMPT
RMV Improvements: $7,170    
RMV Total: $25,310    
Assessed Value: $0    

Tax Information
Taxes Levied 201415: $0.00 Tax Payoff Amount: $0.00
Tax Rate: 19.0445 Tax Statement: 201415 Tax Statement
   

Sales Information
Sales Date: 11/6/2014 Deed Number: 36480342
Sales Price: $18,982 Deed Type: RC
Sale Type: 03 Property IDs Included in

Sale:
R105926

Sales Date: 11/19/2013 Deed Number: 35620160
Sales Price: Deed Type: MI
Sale Type: 03 Property IDs Included in

Sale:
R13549 R13330 R87526 R68023
R325250 R49418 R43638 R77937
R105926 R31664 R108488 R34556
R330614 R333029 R40858 R40859
R101196 R101194 R31512 R105900

Sales Date: 6/21/1994 Deed Number: 11740117
Sales Price: $0 Deed Type: RD
Sale Type: 12 Property IDs Included in

Sale:
R105926

17

http://apps.co.marion.or.us/PropertyRecords/PropertySummary.aspx?pid=R31512
http://apps.co.marion.or.us/LFData/ASSESSORS/e00/01/27/000127BA.jpg
http://apps.co.marion.or.us/PropertyRecords/PropertySummary.aspx?pid=R31664
http://apps.co.marion.or.us/PropertyRecords/PropertySummary.aspx?pid=R40859
http://apps.co.marion.or.us/PropertyRecords/PropertySummary.aspx?pid=R13549
http://apps.co.marion.or.us/PropertyRecords/PropertySummary.aspx?pid=R105900
http://apps.co.marion.or.us/PropertyRecords/PropertySummary.aspx?pid=R34556
http://apps.co.marion.or.us/PropertyRecords/PropertySummary.aspx?pid=R101196
http://apps.co.marion.or.us/PropertyRecords/PropertySummary.aspx?pid=R108488
http://apps.co.marion.or.us/PropertyRecords/PropertySummary.aspx?pid=R13330
http://apps.co.marion.or.us/PropertyRecords/PropertySummary.aspx?pid=R105926
javascript:void(null);
http://apps.co.marion.or.us/PropertyRecords/PropertySummary.aspx?pid=R43638
javascript:void(null);
javascript:void(null);
http://apps.co.marion.or.us/PropertyRecords/PropertySummary.aspx?pid=R105926
http://apps.co.marion.or.us/PropertyRecords/PropertySummary.aspx?pid=R333029
http://apps.co.marion.or.us/PropertyRecords/PropertySummary.aspx?pid=R77937
http://apps.co.marion.or.us/PropertyRecords/PropertySummary.aspx?pid=R68023
http://apps.co.marion.or.us/PropertyRecords/PropertySummary.aspx?pid=R49418
javascript:void(null);
http://apps.co.marion.or.us/PropertyRecords/PropertySummary.aspx?pid=R105926
javascript:void(null);
http://apps.co.marion.or.us/PropertyRecords/CodeArea.pdf
http://apps.co.marion.or.us/PropertyRecords/TaxStatements/R105926.pdf
http://apps.co.marion.or.us/PropertyRecords/PropertySummary.aspx?pid=R330614
http://apps.co.marion.or.us/PropertyRecords/PropertySummary.aspx?pid=R325250
http://apps.co.marion.or.us/PropertyRecords/PropertySummary.aspx?pid=R40858
http://apps.co.marion.or.us/PropertyRecords/PropertySummary.aspx?pid=R87526
http://apps.co.marion.or.us/PropertyRecords/PropertySummary.aspx?pid=R101194
javascript:void(null);
javascript:void(null);

	URA Meeting Minutes 03-23-15
	REVISED URG 2015-06 URA 2
	URG 2015-06 Application
	Application
	images

	Hayes development preview
	255 W Hayes Property Records



